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Solicitor of Labor means the Solicitor, 
U.S. Department of Labor, and includes 
attorneys of the Office of the Solicitor 
authorized by the Solicitor to perform 
functions of the Solicitor under this 
part. 

§ 580.2 Applicability of procedures and 
rules. 

The procedures and rules contained 
in this part prescribe the administra-
tive process for assessment of civil 
money penalties for any violation of 
the child labor provisions at section 12 
of the Act and any regulation there-
under as set forth in part 579, and for 
assessment of civil money penalties for 
any repeated or willful violation of the 
minimum wage provisions of section 6 
or the overtime provisions of section 7 
of the Act or the regulations there-
under set forth in 29 CFR subtitle B, 
chapter V. The substantive require-
ments for assessment of civil money 
penalties are set forth at 29 CFR part 
579 (child labor) and part 578 (minimum 
wage and overtime). 

§ 580.3 Written notice of determination 
required. 

Whenever the Administrator deter-
mines that there has been a violation 
by any person of section 12 of the Act 
relating to child labor or any regula-
tion issued under that section, or de-
termines that there has been a re-
peated or willful violation by any per-
son of section 6 or section 7 of the Act, 
and determines that imposition of a 
civil money penalty for such violation 
is appropriate, the Administrator shall 
issue and serve a notice of such penalty 
on such person in person or by certified 
mail. Where service by certified mail is 
not accepted by the party, notice shall 
be deemed received on the date of at-
tempted delivery. Where service is not 
accepted, the Administrator may exer-
cise discretion to serve the notice by 
regular mail. 

§ 580.4 Contents of notice. 

The notice required by § 580.3 of this 
part shall: 

(a) Set forth the determination of the 
Administrator as to the amount of the 
penalty and the reason or reasons 
therefor; 

(b) Set forth the right to take excep-
tion to the assessment of penalties and 
set forth the right to request a hearing 
on such determination; 

(c) Inform any affected person or per-
sons that in the absence of a timely ex-
ception to a determination of penalty 
and a request for a hearing received 
within 15 days of the date of receipt of 
the notice, the determination of the 
Administrator shall become final and 
unappealable; and 

(d) Set forth the time and method for 
taking exception to the determination 
and requesting a hearing, and the pro-
cedures relating thereto, as set forth in 
§ 580.6 of this part. 

§ 580.5 Finality of notice. 

If the person charged with violations 
does not, within 15 days after receipt of 
the notice, take exception to the deter-
mination that the violation or viola-
tions for which the penalty is imposed 
occurred, the administrative deter-
mination by the Administrator of the 
amount of such penalty shall be 
deemed final and not subject to admin-
istrative or judicial review. Upon the 
determination becoming final in such a 
manner, collection and recovery of the 
penalty shall be instituted pursuant to 
§ 580.18. 

[69 FR 75405, Dec. 16, 2004] 

§ 580.6 Exception to determination of 
penalty and request for hearing. 

(a) Any person desiring to take ex-
ception to the determination of pen-
alty, or to seek judicial review, shall 
request an administrative hearing pur-
suant to this part. The exception shall 
be in writing to the official who issued 
the determination at the Wage and 
Hour Division address appearing on the 
determination notice, and must be re-
ceived no later than 15 days after the 
date of receipt of the notice referred to 
in § 580.3. No additional time shall be 
added where service of the determina-
tion of penalties or of the exception 
thereto is made by mail. If such a re-
quest for an administrative hearing is 
timely filed, the Administrator’s deter-
mination shall be inoperative unless 
and until the case is dismissed or the 
Administrative Law Judge issues a de-
cision affirming the determination. 
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(b) No particular form is prescribed 
for any exception to determination of 
penalty and request for hearing per-
mitted by this part. However, any such 
request shall: 

(1) Be dated; 
(2) Be typewritten or legibly written; 
(3) Specify the issue(s) stated in the 

notice of determination giving rise to 
such request; 

(4) State the specific reason(s) why 
the person requesting the hearing be-
lieves such determination is in error; 

(5) Be signed by the person making 
the request or by an authorized rep-
resentative of such person; and 

(6) Include the address at which such 
person or authorized representative de-
sires to receive further communica-
tions relating thereto. 

[56 FR 24991, May 31, 1991, as amended at 60 
FR 17222, Apr. 5, 1995; 69 FR 75405, Dec. 16, 
2004] 

RULES OF PRACTICE 

§ 580.7 General. 

(a) Except as specifically provided in 
this subpart, and to the extent they do 
not conflict with the provisions of this 
subpart, the Rules of Practice and Pro-
cedure for Administrative Hearings Be-
fore the Office of Administrative Law 
Judges established by the Secretary at 
29 CFR part 18 shall apply to adminis-
trative proceedings under this subpart. 

(b) Subpart B of the Rules of Practice 
and Procedure for Administrative 
Hearings Before the Office of Adminis-
trative Law Judges (29 CFR part 18, 
subpart B) shall apply except as fol-
lows: Notwithstanding the provisions 
of subpart B, including the hearsay 
rule (§ 18.802), testimony of current or 
former Department of Labor employees 
concerning information obtained in the 
course of investigations and conclu-
sions thereon, as well as any docu-
ments contained in Department of 
Labor files (other than the investiga-
tion file concerning the violation(s) as 
to which the penalty in litigation has 
been assessed), shall be admissible in 
proceedings under this subpart. Noth-
ing in this paragraph is intended to 
limit the admissibility of any evidence 
which is otherwise admissible under 29 
CFR part 18, subpart B. 

§ 580.8 Service and computation of 
time. 

(a) Service of documents under this 
subpart shall be made by delivery to 
the individual, an officer of a corpora-
tion, or attorney of record or by mail-
ing the determination to the last 
known address of the individual, offi-
cer, or attorney. If done by mail, serv-
ice is complete upon mailing. If done in 
person, service is complete upon hand-
ing it to the attorney, officer or party; 
by leaving it at the office with a clerk 
or person in charge, or leaving it at a 
conspicuous place in the office if no 
one is in charge; or by leaving it at the 
attorney’s or party’s residence. 

(b) Two (2) copies of all pleadings and 
other documents required for any ad-
ministrative proceeding provided by 
this subpart shall be served on the at-
torneys for the Department of Labor. 
One copy shall be served on the Asso-
ciate Solicitor, Division of Fair Labor 
Standards, Office of the Solicitor, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Avenue NW., Washington, DC 20210, and 
one copy on the attorney representing 
the Department in the proceeding. 

(c) Time will be computed beginning 
with the day following the action and 
includes the last day of the period un-
less it is a Saturday, Sunday, or feder-
ally-observed holiday, in which case 
the time period includes the next busi-
ness day. 

§ 580.9 Commencement of proceeding. 
Each administrative proceeding per-

mitted under the Act and these regula-
tions shall be commenced upon receipt 
of a timely request for hearing filed in 
accordance with § 580.6 of this subpart. 

REFERRAL FOR HEARING 

§ 580.10 Referral to Administrative 
Law Judge. 

(a) Upon receipt of a timely excep-
tion to a determination of penalties 
and request for a hearing filed pursu-
ant to and in accordance with § 580.6 of 
this subpart, the Administrator, by the 
Associate Solicitor for the Division of 
Fair Labor Standards or by the Re-
gional Solicitor for the Region in 
which the action arose, shall, by Order 
of Reference, refer the matter to the 
Chief Administrative Law Judge, for a 
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